o

TOWN OF BOLTON
BOARD/COMMISSION
INTEREST FORM

Thank you for your interest in serving on a board or commission in our community. Volunteers play
a major role in our Town government. The Board of Selectmen or subcommittee will review the

information provided and may ask to meet with you to consider appointment.

Name: C“‘f&\é 751/?’750

Addresss (4 OSToNE. HEDLE A NT

Telephone Number: (%S'S ) qe7 - {s2 [ Cell Number: ( 86 6) LB7-7/3803
Email Address: cmHlans @ ,Ol,{VL,@lI [. come

Political Affiliation: R@O sLicAn)
[ am interested in servifon the (name of board/commission) _| e P BUdONE Comm T7TES

as a full member and/or alternate

Please provide a brief statement as to why you are interested in serving on this board /commission.

T am_ | NTERESTZD (W SERUNC oW TH 'S (omm|SSion BecAws T A %
STRE | NEREST |4 THS. (oW TERM. DEVELoPmENT  OF MR  CommunTiy,

T Welem s T, CPPORTUNITY TO CoNTRGIT & MY Tim@E AN D ?&ng’écmdg
To TREGECTS THAT  ImPAcT  RSESIDEATE  WJouw AnD N THE TUTURR,

Please share any pertinent information on your background, education and experience as it relates to

the board /commission position.
Tam A SEMoR. PROTEST MarACER  Tor A HIGHk END RESDENTIA V-
*oms BUILDER  AND Raue YoreeDd N COoNGRUCT/oA MY @epTike

CARILE.,

Please add any additional information or comments.

’

o &
Signed: Wq’\p Date: L//z/@é

If you have any questions, please contact the Selectman's Office.

Please complete this form and return to:

Selectman's Office

222 Bolton Center Road
Bolton, CT 06043
hr@boltonct.org

(860) 649-8066 x 6111




e

A
TOWN OF BOLTON
BOARD/COMMISSION
INTEREST FORM

Thank you for your interest in serving on a board or commission in our community. Volunteers play
a major role in our Town government. The Board of Selectmen or subcommittee will review the
information provided and may ask to meet with you to consider appointment.

Name: \,)%SV/A W%ﬂ)' K«U ZMIECAS
Address: qs \IGL\D\ QfD &L’fﬂf\) ) T OLOOL‘S
Telephone Number: Cell Number: 206" CFI Le- (AL 3

Email Address: \J%S‘ A \/\J%ﬁ éu @, a(M AL - W
Political Affiliation: %M

I am interested in serving on the (name of board/commission) &S QDOF

as a full member X and/or alternate

Please provide a brief statement as to why you are interested in serving on this board/commission.

My peuasTtel pFentd S o | ceee  ABouT THE
BaLoING  AND  ENN) N,

To oSTR\RYTE. o —THE -TownN  WHEN (| AM ARLE Tb
Do So. | FEcL vy PACEGROUND WL BE A #SImMVE

_CONSTRASTION I TS COMMITFTEE .

Please share any pertinent information on your background, education and experience as it relates to

the board/commission position.

| WAVE B DEEREE 1N NSTRWTION MANAZEMENT FRM
LV - | BPNE MANAGED NUMERWS X pom | BERLTHACARE |
MG PaL - RoyeCTs . AM CUORRENTIN EMPLINED PR A

Please add any additional information or comments. %}2&%—‘—(2’0‘:} Pm GER- A

ya
Signed: /Q/\Mb Date: ll\‘f) 20

any questjons, please contact the Selectman's Office.

If you hav

Please comple ig’form and return to:

Selectman's Office

222 Bolton Center Road
Bolton, CT 06043
hr@boltonct.org

(860) 649-8066 x 6111




McCavana(.;h, Kathy
ey

From: Jon Treat <jonrtreat@gmail.com> D [E @ E U W E

Sent: Wednesday, January 21, 2026 9:39 AM %
To: McCavanagh, Kathy JAN 2 1 2025
Subject: Resignation

By

i EXTERNAL EMAIL - This email was sent by a person from outside your organization.

Kathy as of today, January 21, i give you my 2 weeks notice. My final day will be Wednesday February 4th.

Thanks
Jon Treat



Lo
Town of Bolton

222 BoLtoN CENTER RoaD * BoLton, CT 06043

EGE]

Recreation Department
(860) 649-8066 Phone
(860) 643-0021 Fax

Stephanie Crane
1146 Enfield St
Enfield, CT 06082
(860) 264-7195

January 16, 2026
Recreation Director
Town of Bolton, CT
222 Bolton Center Rd
Bolton, CT 06043

Dear Ms. McCavanagh and Mr. Rupert,

I would like to inform you that | am resigning from my position as Recreation Director for the
Town of Bolton, effective February 13, 2026.

Thank you for the opportunities for professional and personal development that you have
provided me during the last 5+ years. | have enjoyed_working for the Town of Bolton, and

appreciate the support provided me during my time with the town. | could not have asked
for a better work experience and work family during the beginning of my career.

If I can be of any help during this transition, please let me know.

]
Sincerely, /



7

€1°GT0°0T9‘9 $]00/90°8bZ _ $ | 00°TOV'00v S| 00'S60'2TS ¢ | 0028bbT6'? S | 00'STO'bS6 S | EI'SS6'086'T S 1e303qns umoy
00°000°8T o sl _- sl = i $ | 00°000°8T s| - S 3upuied Jouaix3 uip)ing sJadooll |G
00°000'00F gl - s| - s| - s | 00000‘00z S | oo000'svT $ | 00°000'sS S "43dQ 79 seyul **3ey4 umoj o) *Jdwi Bunuawaldw) g Bujuueid|zg
00°000'0bE 3 sl = $f - o = $ | oo'000’0Lt _ $ | 00'000'0LT S uolianJysuo) 33pug peoy wewhl| g
00°000°0TE S| - sl = §i] = A S $ | 00'000°0bT $ | 00'000°0LT S "20q 3pig 3 3uaauidug 33plg peoy uewAl|ng
00°000°00Z S = S = S - S = S - $ | 00000002 S uess jiel| a3e3lUaH uoyjog|6h
00'198'0L S = S - $ - S e S # $ | 00'T98'0L S Apn3s Ayj1aed apip umolL |8y
LT'Tv8'29 $] = S S| - S| - $ | 00°000'v¥ S |LrTEssr S 33140 JejnpoiN| 2y
96'L66'0TT S - S - S - S ~ S 4 $ | 96'L66'01T $ owsag JWHN|9p
00°000'SZ S | 00'000'sZ $ - S - S - $ = $ £ S Jajiog Buim Yinos JANN| Gt
00'000'8% $ | 00'0008% S = S - S - $ - s - S Juawaoe|day jooy jleH umoL |yt
26'968'8bT S - S - S = S = S - $ | z6'968'8PT S uolsuedx3 Ajiaed jleH umol et
00'0002Z $ | 00'000'2T S £ S = S - S - $ - 5 si3|pueH J|v |leH umoL | gy
00'000'ST s - sl - si - S| - S | 00°000'52 s| - S Bunuled Jo123x3 [[EH UMOL| T
08'8LL6 S = S = S = S - $ | 00'000°LY S | 08'8LL'T S 3]21Y3A jleH umol | Qb
0000582 S S S - $ | 0o'00s'8Z S - S - S - $ 41004 3jnep s 3137 umol|gE
00'000'9Z S = S - S - $ | oo'o00’az S - S - $ uawaaejdal Joog Jouaixg j|eH umol|ge
00'000'05 $ = S| - S - s | 00°000'0T $ | o0'000'0r sl - S 931593M ||eH umol |/ €
00°000°00T S w S @ S o $ | 00000'00T S - 3 - 4 ueA Aldede) a3lie7 Ja3ua) Joluas|gg
00°000°SS s| - s - s| - s - s - $ | 0o'000'ss 3 UBAJUJIAl 3]q|55922Y J31U3) Jojuas|ge
00°000'0¢ S = $ | 00'0000€ S = $ = S = S - S 1aded||iem pue juied 123ua) Jotuas| pE
00°000'01 $ | 00'000'0T sl - S| - S| - $] - s - $ Jooyd aji) 3310 Aesgiifgg
- $ agL) - * $1 - S - sl - S uopeys 3uidiey) A3 Aeagn|ze
00'000'ZV S < S = - S | 00’000z S = S - S J03es3uan Ausdiaws Aesqi| Tg
00°000°0 $ = S = 00°000'0Z $ - S - $ = S waysAs uonen|id iy Aeagn|og
00°000'vC S = $ | 00°000°v2 $ = S - S - $ - $ 19due) ealy uew Aeigii|gz
00'000°ZY S| - S| - S| - $ | 00’0002k sl = S| - 5 ooy Aieuqpn|gz
00°005'0T S - S - $ - S £ $ | oo"00s‘0t S - S Pays 38e403s Yied Yai0N UelpUl| /7
00°005'E9 $ - $ - $ | 00°005°€9 S = $ 5 $ - $ 3deasAe|d j1ed Ya1oN uelpul|gz
00'00S'LT S = S - S - $ = $ | 00°005°LT $ - S (1ads) jo13u0) aujye uosdot AemyBiH|Gz
00'000'S8 S - $ s S < $ | 00’0000 $ | 0o0'000'sy S - S Apog Aujan/m sissey) 1 qed uoy T AemyBiH|pz
00°000'0V€ S - $ | 00'VEE'ETT S | 00'EEE'ETT S | 00°EEE‘ETT $ = S - S (43j33ym 0T) Yonu) mojd/dwing AemyBiH| ez
4926108 3 S| - $] - $ | 00°000°sT S | 00'00T‘oy $ | £9'260'52 $ Jojeneox3 AemydiH|zz
00'22L4'8v9 S - S = S - S | oo'zee'sve S - S - S SUO[IBACUSY PUB UONIPPY YJed }LI3H|TZ
00'000'SZT S = S - S - $ | 00'000'SZT $ - S - S ed Wied 98e3uaH 1 YJed }OLIRH| 07
00°000°00€ $ S S = $ - $ | oo‘coo’00e S = $ = $ UOIONJJUOI3Y P|al4 493305 YJed Yo1IaH| 6T
00°000Z01 S = S - S - S - $ s $ | 00'000°z0T $ sp|a1d 433205 jJed YIIaH|gT
00°'000'SE $ = S - $ - $ | 00'000°SE $ - $ - s Juawade|day Jooy yJed YauiaH| T
00°0009Z S = S - $ | 00°000'9¢ S - S - $ - $ 20RUINS Yled YouIaH|gT
00'8E5°L08 $ - $ - $ = $ | 00°'8€5°208 S - S - $ ueld Jaise| Jad swoouyieg wied ageIiaH|gT
00°000'ZLY $ | 00’00’00t $ | oo’000'00T s | 0o'000'00T s | 00'000'00T s | 00'000'sz $ | 00°000°LY S Uo1e103saY WiE] a9eiaH | § T
00'000'5S $ - $ = $ | 0o'c00°'sz S | 00’000°0€ S - S - S UolieInisay JamoL olpey uoissiwwio) a14| €T
00'0ZL'8E $ < $ - S | 00°S60'9Z $ - S | 00'529°ZT $ = S 43kiq 13 Jaysem Je3D Inowin| aJl Uo|ssIWIW0) a3 |7 T
00'000'06 $ - $ | 00'000°0E $ | 00'0000E $ | 00°'000°0€ S - $ - $ uonisinbay apiyap/uoissaiddng aai4|TT
00'085'L8T S = S - $ | oo'oo0‘6E $ | 00°062°61 $ | 0006261 $ | 00°000°05 S SUoREIUNIIWIO) OIpRY 3snoyald|QT
29°058'v8T $ - $ - $ - S = S = S | 29°058'v8Z $ Alddns Jayem uoissasddns alii[g
00°000'59 $] - S| - $ < $ | 00'000'EE S - $ | 00'000°Z€ S Joerbsay| g swiey ‘stapeauds ‘s1ann) oljneJpAy3 - asnoyzuid|g
00°00008 S = $ - S B $ | 00°000°08 S - S = S jJoos asnoyaud| z
000002V S - $ | co'o0o’zy S 2 S > S - S - S 53uswade|day JaUORIPUO? JIY 3snoyalld 9
00°000'0T S = S 5 S - 5 | 00°000°0T $ - S % S 3]2142A ALY J0)ED 5pUn0IS 7 Bulp|ing|g
00'000'9€ S - $ | 00'000'8T S = $ | 00°665°ST $ - $ | 00°TOb'Z S juawade|day siamolA Beas spunosp 73 sBuip|ing|y
00'T00'9ST $ | 00°£99'Le $ | 00°299°LT s | 0049922 S - $ [ 00°000°EL S = S Yanu1 dnya1d spunoig 3 sauipjing|g
00'000'8L S = S - $ | 00°000'6€E $ | 00°000'6€ S = $ 53UdWPaYILIIR/M JAMOW JUOL INO SPUNOID 13 SBUIP|ING|Z
66'vE0'SOT $ | oo'oov'st $ | oo'oov'st $ | 00'000°€T s | 00'000'eT s | 0o'000'eT s | 66'vez'sE S Uojien|e3-aY 930 51085355V | T
18301 TE0ZAd 0E0ZAd 620TAd 820ZAd L20ZA4 Spunj loud sp2l01d umoy

TEOCAL - L202Ad (dID) ueld u:mEm.>o._QE_ |exide) umoy




€T°0v0'9S5'L $|00°290'vv9 [ 00°TOLZ9v $ | 00°S60°66S  $ | 00°Z8Y'OLOE $ | 99°LYY'EVS $ | ET'OBI'6YO'T S V101 ANVYO
(ve'L90282) $ uonedojjeal 19afoid 3584
00'STO'VS6  § |e103 323f01d umoy
00'520'9v6 $ | 0000096 $ | 00°00€‘z9 ¢ | 0000028 ¢ [ 00'000'9ST $ | 00°005'94T S | 00'szz'89 S 1e3039NS 308
00°000°9.T s | 000009t §| - sl - sl - S| - S| - S wa3sAS s5323y 100 7§ eJ3WE) AYINI3S 308|ST
00'65b'52 S| - S| - N I S| - S| - $ | 00'6SY'ST S wa)sAs yuawadeuey Aiaug || aseyd so8[pT
00°000'0V S - S 5 S ] $ | 00000'0F  $ - S - S SIIMON uin] 0197 1IsIaf €T
0000058 3 - S - S - $10000Sey $|0000sCy S z S juswade|day uep dealpuey 013sIA[ZT
00'991°SL S| - S| - § = S| - $ 10000022  $|0099T'E S (5002) moid Yyum ani ) dn aid 313s10[ TT
00'000'05 S S| - S| - S| - $|ooooo'os  $| - S sdwnq 3234 SHB|0T
00°000'SL S| - sl - $|ooooo'sc S| - S| - S| - 3 siaydea|g SHal6
00°00€'SE S| - $fooooe'se S| - S| - S| - S| - S 43woou9 pialy|leg playu| SHE(g
0000089 S|ooo0083 S| - S| - S| - S| - sl - S 0ST Jisues] - uep ANARIY SHA |/
00°008'6t $ | 000009 $ [ 000009 $ | 000009 $ | 00’0009 $ | 000009 $ | 00°008°6T S UBWSS3SSY JVAH |00Y9S YSiH|g
00°000'ST s| - $ joooo0'st S| - S - S g S - S }20]) 21005 wWA9 528 (g
00°000°0vT $ |ooooo'ovT S| - S| - S| - S| - S| - $ (€66T) s1ayoeag Soaly
00'000°LY S < S - S = S |oo000'ty S - S - 3 Juawsade|day Jojoel) §oalg
00'00SvT S » S - S - S |oooos'vt S - S - $ 13qqnas 1004 [00YIS 23U 7
00008°6Y $ | 00'0009 $ | 000009 $ | 000009 S | 00°000°9 S | 00'000'9 S | 00'008'6T 3 JUBWISS3SSY JVAH [00YIS J23U3)| T
leloL TEOZAL 0E0ZAL 620TAd 820TA4 LTOZAS spuny Joud syaloid jooyas

TEO0ZAL - LZ0TAd (d1D) veld uawanoidwy jende) 309




00°000°0LE'ST S sy9foad Suipuog
00°000°T¥9’ST S | 00°000°0LE'ST $ | 00°000°TLZ S [ejoiqns 30g/umoy
00°000°S6S $ | 00°000'565 s |o ¥ona] asi4|g
00°000°SE S ag.l | 00°000sE S uoisuedx3 asnoya.id|g
00°000's22‘T $ | oo000'sZZ'T S| - S s)un g7) sdwind 1834 JYAH SHe |7
00°000°005‘E $ | 00'000°005°€ S - S oe4L 18 plald 492205 jooyds YSiH| e
00'000°002‘S $ | o0000‘002's  $| - S duiuonipuo) Jty Buipnoul apesSdn/iuswade|day JVAH 8|z
00°000980°S $ | 00°000°0S8‘y  $ | 00°'000°9€T S Atuosey 13 uswade|day Jooy [ooyds 193ua) 1oy Supsauidul|T
|1elol Spun4 Jokd s}oalold Buipuog

TE0ZAL - LZ0ZA4 (d1D) ueld Judwanosdwi [eude) 30g/umo




v€°£90°L8C

00°000°0S
00°000°0¥
00°000°00T
00'6%0°€
00°0059
8¥'SET'6
98'78€8L

aouejeg

R72 0 SR Vo S ¥ AV N 7 N V8

uonedoj|eay |ejoy

wa1sAs Juswadeuey A8Iaug || aseyd SHg
Apms Aujoey apim umoy

uonijowad JNYN

apelddn walsAs wiey a1l |00Yds Jaua)
ue|d 21891&41S UOISSILLWOY) 2414

SPed uollsued| yay [0oyas ysiH

a3esen [0oyas ySiH

19foud

uolleaxojjeay



Town of Bolton

222 BOLTON CENTER ROAD @ BOLTON, CT 06043

CERTIFIED RESOLUTION
(TO ACCOMPANY GRANT CONTRACT)

I, __Rodney Fournier , First Selectman of the Town of Bolton ,a
(First Selectman) (Name of Organization as Incorporated)

Connecticut corporation, do hereby certify that the following is a true and correct copy of a resolution duly

adopted at a meeting of the Board of Selectmen of this corporation, duly held on __February 3, 2026
(Date of Meeting- held BEFORE contract is signed)

at which meeting a daily constituted quorum of the Board of Selectmen was present and acting throughout and

that such resolution has not been modified, rescinded or revoked and is at present in full force and effect.

RESOLVED:
That Rodney Fournier _, who is the First Selectman of this corporation, is empowered to
(Name of Official) (Title of Official)

execute and deliver in the name and on behalf of this corporation a certain contract with the State of
Connecticut, Department of Economic and Community Development, and to affix the corporate seal, if any, for

the Parks and Recreation Grant

In Witness whereof, the undersigned has affixed his/her signature and the corporate seal of this corporation, if

any.

(Signature)

(First Selectman)

(Date — BEFORE contract is signed)



Tc

Town of Bolton

222 BOLTON CENTER ROAD e BOLTON, CT 06043

JAMES M. RUPERT
TOWN ADMINISTRATOR

December 17, 2025

Dear Bolton Resident,

I am writing to you today to inform you that we have been asked to consider installing a streetlight on the
telephone pole adjacent to 1069 Boston Turnpike where the Dollar General and Bolton Lake Dental office
driveway intersect Boston Turnpike. The request to consider the light is based on some finding the driveway
hard to locate in the dark when travelling west on Boston Turnpike.

As a resident that lives in proximity to this, we would like to hear from you before bringing it to the Board of
Selectmen for their consideration. It is important to the Board of Selectmen to hear from you so they know if
you have any concerns regarding this matter so they may take that into consideration before making a decision.
The best way for you to communicate with us is by sending an email to HR@boltonct.gov. we would like to
hear from you no later than January15, 2026. If we receive an email from you, we will email you to let you
know when this item will be on the agenda for discussion at a Board meeting.

Respectfully,

OZ»%E’

James Rupert
Bolton Town Administrator



i
— — wll
o B T Mw
i
i it N | 2 —
o T N e it
i
N — =
——— H

= e i) oo \wvlhﬁ\
ey Eg /9

Sy i) A \.\V.QQ\M

wetany sy 629/

D LY

IS ULY Y ST NNQ..M\__

- s R
‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘ WSy S hh\w “
e TR, fSeE \\.\\,
W] ST \QNhN

_ ytery ey erel
— L
- Sy o
A A

- A S AR
- IO UESE Sl

‘ Wy agsEr T 99 ||
I T ‘uN\),v_x\W\S\\d\\ e QI%‘QI\ ,.




McCavanag h, Kathz

From: Karen Viklinetz <karenviklinetz@gmail.com>

Sent: Thursday, January 8, 2026 11:09 AM

To: Human Resources

Subject: Streetlight consideration on telephone phone near 1069 Bolton Turnpike

i EXTERNAL EMAIL - This email was sent by a person from outside your organization.

Hello,

In response to your letter dated December 17, 2025, please note that we do not have any objection to a streetlight being
installed on the telephone pole adjacent to our home to help illuminate the driveway for Dollar General and Bolton Lake
Dental. We find it hard to see that driveway ourselves, especially when travelling west on Boston Turnpike.

Please note, however, that we've always noticed that the telephone pole at the bottom of our driveway has been titled quite a
bit and we keep wondering when it will fall over. We assume that this tilted pole will be inspected and secured safely, if
necessary.

Also, please note that my son, Matt Viklinetz, at 1 Tolland Rd, who has received the same letter, has no objection to the
installation of this streetlight either.

Thankyou,
Karen Viklinetz

Mark Viklinetz
Matt Viklinetz (1 Tolland Rd)



%YE vy %6¢' LY %I8'EY %8T°LS LO'LST'E60'E S | 9E'V60EST S | EV'ISE'OVE'E S | £S'926°LL8'E $ | 00'8ZZ' V'L $ | 00'8LE'vTe'L S s|elol
%TL'ES %S6°'LS %T8°67 %9L’6V S¥°9/9'59¢ S - S [ s¥'9/9°s9¢ S | ss'estzoe S | 00°0€8°LZL S [ oooes‘zzL S uoRd9||0] 31sBM
%68 v %20°7S %98°SY %8€'9€ S9°/66'T S - S| S91/66T s|sevr't s [ ooovT's S | 00°0PT'E S UO1eAIBSUOD
%¢0°'8S %SE"6S %S¥'€9 %LE V9 L6 TYT'VIT S | €8°2TT'ST S | 08°'SSE‘6CT S | 02162'T6T S | 00°4¥9°0zE S | 00°2¥9°0zE S Ateugny
%TT9 %¥9'TS %6219 %E6'SS 661608 s | 00'0zv'y S | 66'TTST6 s [ To'TET 90T S | 00°€¥9°L6T S | 00evo’L6T S S92IAJDS |B120S / SIojuds

%00°0 %LTTT %000 00009 S - S | 00°009 S = S | 007009 S | 000009 S UOISSIWWOD ,SUBIDIDA
%8105 %26°0S %LL'SL %00°'S. 9T'EEY'L S % EISIS S | v8'962'Ce S | 00°0€L'6T S | 00°0€L'6C S ulwpy yijesH alignd
%T8' 9% %09°2S %C'TS %SL°6S G8'CES8YE S | TT99¥'stT S | 96'866'€9¢ S | ¥0°020'z0S S | 00°6T0998 S | 00°6T0998 S sdQ Suip|ing umo] /s)ied
%86°S9 %E8°95 %S6°9% %LL99 19'0/9'ECE S | E€°619°EE S | 00°0S€‘LS¢E S [ 00219919 S | 00°£96°EL6 S | 00°£96°EL6 S S193.15 pue sAemy3siH
%86°LS %CY'8¢ %YELT %0T v 0S9TE9 [ = $ | 05'9T€9 S | 0S°€00°S S | 00°0ZETT S | 00°0ZE‘TT S juswaseuey AouaBiaw3
%SS'6¢ %Yy Ve %00°0S %95°0S €8'GT8'ST S | 0o o0g S| €8'STT9T S| cTvL8'sT S | 00°066°TE S | 00°066°TE S [eYSIBA 3414
%L1 96 %00'00T (%000 %00°59 00°00S‘E S - S [ 00005 S | 0070059 S [ 00000°0T S | 00°000°0T S 10J3U0) |eWIUY
%8595 %2879 %LT°9S %S59'99 ¥9°85286 S | ShvbEES s [ 60°€0T 28T S | 16'S86'€TT S | 00°680°96¢ S | 00'680°96T S uoIssIWwo) aJi4
%LED %¥0°0 %0T°T %CE'0 08" EVE00€ S 5 S | 08" EPE‘00E s | 0z'9s6 $ | 00°00€'T0E $ | 00"00€T0E S 921jod
%EL'6S %8V LT %90°'6E %L8°St €V'065¥9 S | 86°S16'C S | T¥'90529 S | 657Z8'1S S | 00'62€°6TT s | oo6zEBTT S Suoi3|3

%00°08 %00°0% %00°0 00°000'S S . $ | 00°000°S S . S [ 00'000°s s | 00°000°s S juswdo|aAaQ 21wouod3
%Y0°'LT %61°'€C %69°0S %V8'EE 9L'8LY'T S z S |948/¥'T S | vT9sL S | 00'S€T'e S | 00°S€2°C S SPUE|I3M/Spuelyl
%00°0 %81 €8 %000 %E6'06 00°S€9 S - S | 00's€9 S | 00°59€9 $ | 000002 S | 00°000°Z S 91eqo.d
%92 S %CS'ES %98'¥S %S8°LS LY'6%S0L S - S | LV6pS0L S | ES'ET896 S | 00°€9€°29T S | 00°€9€‘/9T S 9dueunsuj Auadoud
%05°8T %69°LT %CC'8C %SS v 00'S/S‘T $ e S | 00°S/S‘T S | 0062 S | 00°0S9‘T $ | 00059T S sjeaddy jo pieog 3ujuoz
%9E"6€ %E6'ST %ETTT %98°9T 69'SZE'E S - $ | 69°S2E‘E S| IEWLY S | 00°000F S [ 00°000'% S guluoz 1 Sujuueld
%VS' LY %68°€S %SS°09 %78°S9 LEE0T'E9T S | 00'00v'08 S | Le'€0Sebe S | €9'9v9°cse S | 000ST'LLY S | 00°0ST'LLY S asn pueq
%ES'LS %9785 %ET'T9 %6T'T9 66'€05'8S S | 05718 S | 6¥'9TE?9 S | 16'6€7°88 S | 00°9S£0ST S | 00°9S2°0ST S M3 umo |
%0T"0S %L8°T9 %C6'T9 %¥9°'€9 YT'9ZEvey S - S | vT'9zE vy S | 98'8¥SThL $1005/899T'T  $ | 00'5/899T'T § s)ijauag a8ully
%29°CS %¥¥"0S %Y LS %VE'6S €T°SOT‘EY S| S8LLEY S| 86T8Y' Ly S | 20£2S'8s S | 00°0T090T S [ 00010901 S J01039]10) XB|
%LS°TS %¥0'TS %96°'8S %9 LS ¢6'/ST'TL S | 00'EvT S | 2600V S | 80'TEY'96 S | 00°Z€8'89T S | 00'2€889T S Jossassy
%YT LT %8L°LT %CCT %CTTT 00'005'6€ S - $ | 00°00S°6€ S | 00°00S‘S S | 00°000°Sy S | 00'000'st S unipny
%¥8°7S %05 €S %91 ¥S %90°85 7€'680'S0T S| 95179 S | 88°9T/SOT S | ZT'8/8 VT S [ 00's6s 05z S | 00°565°0S¢ S uoijeJisiuiwpy [eloueuly
%6E°LT %627 VT %65°LT %L9°9T 00°00S‘C S - S [ 00005 S | 00°00S S | 007000 S | 00°000°€ S 3dueuld jo pJeog
%8L'8E %ES'0S %LY'8Y %TE'ES YE9€8'E9E S | SL'v6E'8 S| 60'TET TLE S | 1694690 S | 00'80Z°6LL S | 00°802°6/L S uoljelisiuiwpy

€CAd veAd QZAd pasuadxy papuadxaun adueiquinduy aouejeg dlA asuadx3y 103png 193png paidopy

%

pasinay

9202 ‘T€ Atenuer 9zozAd




u01123[]03 %00T 0 %86 10 210 anoqp sabpyuariad ay |

%IT 00T %T0°00T %L6°66 %68°66 %IT'TOT %CE E0T

SZ0Z 0€E'9 SCOT'IE'S SCOCO0EY  STOTIE’S S20T'82°¢ SCTIET

%ST €0T %68°90T %€8°90T %95°90T %ST°S0T %91°68

veoe1eCt vZ0Z'0€'TT PTOC'TEOT 202 0E'6 vC0C’'1E'8 ve1E L

9¢0¢°0€9 920C°1E'S 920¢°0€'V 920T°1E’€E 920¢°8¢°C 9C'IET

%L.8°00T %¢9°00T %98°66 %8C°€6 %SL €8 %10°C

qeoeie et SC0C°0E'TT SCOZ'TEOT SC02'0€'6 SC0C’TE8 SC0T'IE’L
%1866 LT'T09'PY9'6T $ - $ (09°2s6'6y) ¢ (z5'621°08) $ SL'ISS'09€ ¢ YSTETVIE'6T $ 00°9EE‘Z89°6T S 00'9£€°7896T vioL
%6¢°S9 Ity S (80°€T) S (££719) s = § = S L0790STy S 00°000's9 S 00°000'S9 S $334 B 1SIHIINI
%EL'96 08'81CZ8 $ (€9°0S) S (tzoLe) S (tretv'e) § - $ SE'650'98 $ 00°000s8 $ 00°000'S8 S SYVIA HOI4d
%be66 ST'IV6'6IS6T $ TL'€9 $ (e90es’6y) $ (18'60L'92) $ SLTISS'09E  $ 2T'99S'SET'6T $ 00'9EE‘TES'6T $ 009£€°ZES6T  $ V101 9ns
%16°80T 00'965°06T s - $ (v8'ST) S (L6'8%T) s - 18°0£8°06T 00°000°S.T $ 00°000SLT S AATTAW'ddNS
%ZE'68 60'€V9v2ST S (0v'S) $ (€€109) $ (659987) ¢ - S TV6IT'8ZS'T $ 00°€L6'90LT $ 00°€L6'90LT $ F1JIHIN HOLOW
%L8'00T 90'C0L'v08‘LT $ TT'69 $ (Sv'006'8%) $ (STv6S'€C) $ SLTSS09E  $ 06'SLSOTSZT $ 00°€9E'0S9°LT S O00°€9€0S9LT ¢ AAITYA LNIHYND
139an9 9z A4 SZ'IETT SHIISNVYL  SINIFWAVd Sann43y 19 £2 woif 1ano aLA
G31237100  NOILIFTI0D 1IN  °T10J XVL aingniiy P3jjo1 som SNOIL23T10D a3siniy aildoay

IOVINIIYId 3043 3pa1)



BUDGET TRANSFER REQUEST

TO
BOARD OF SELECTMEN
BUDGET: __ & Fisorne\ Thves .
Transfer § from category to category
(within budget) from ___ -~ - - - t0o - - ..

<O ] o L
Transfer $_|4 O from Budget A\ \GO. W\ l'(‘(ﬁ j(“,( m>6\m$udget IO LUDWeTS .

from category‘?’\"‘”{ﬂ O\ SUCS,  to categorij \(YY\Q\ WS -

from JQOF-COH - AL - G___-5380-_ & _
towag‘-gm-ei_u':fz-__yf;___-@fi_&c_>__gz§__

Other $
Explanation:
JOROOECE WOAWVEET
Sor Dwen . ’\H{\C&C\\Lff\c . /_77;; » //71 = —
X o0 n (i Title
A Date
Board of Selectmen Approved Comments:

Yes No

Rodney Fournier
Gwen Marrion
Mather Clarke
Tim Sadler
Byrce Aaronson
David Cowles
Robert DePietro

Date




McCévanacﬁ;h, Kathy

From: Gonsor, Lisa

Sent: Monday, January 26, 2026 12:05 PM
To: McCavanagh, Kathy

Subject: Budget transfer needed

Hi Kathy,

You will need to do a budget transfer into Insurance Waivers in the amount of $1400 to cover the
insurance waiver for Jim Murdock. Jill says you should be able to transfer the funds from the

Health/Major medical line.

Thanks!
Lisa



BUDGET TRANSFER REQUEST
TO
BOARD OF SELECTMEN

BUDGET: Town Clerk
Transfer $54.00 from category Office Supplies to Payroll

(within budget) from 1005-041-4147-000000-56120-00000 to 1005-041-4147-000000-51610-00000

Transfer $ from Budget to Budget
from category to category
from - - - - -
to__ - - - - -
Other $

Explanation: shortfall in the payroll per Lisa Gonsor in Finance

g W ) WMignature
Wgun C Lok Title

/ / 3B / 26 Date
Board of Selectmen Approved Comments:
Yes No
Rodney Fournier
Gwen Marrion
Mather Clarke
Tim Sadler

Byrce Aaronson
David Cowles
Robert DePietro

Date




ajeq ol

abuey sjeq Aq |ie}eq soueIqINoUT JaI4 .
9coz/Lel/L

Scoze/LiL

S0UEEq 0J8Z Y)IM SJUN022E 3AdRUI 3pnjoxT []
BOUB[BQ 0J9Z )M sjunodde juld [] 8oueiquinous aid apnjouj O

:9jeq wol4

! :abed vi'€'5202 [pviebpngmidyueolds  twodey  1SO WV ZZ:0¥'8  9202/92/L0 :Pajuld
uoday jo puz

%86T  LTVEY'YS 82'228'25$ 6v'91£'29% LS°6EV'88$ 15°6Ev'88$ 00'952°051$ 00°0$ 00952051 $ ‘lejo] pueln
%bL.S  00°002$ 00°0$ 00°00Z$ 00°051$ 0005t 00°0Ss€$ 00°0% 00°05€$ 8|0 UM - s8e4 3 seng 00000°00485°000000° 2L’ L¥0'SO0L
%6589  98°L/¢'L$ 00°0$ 98'LLE' LS ¥1'829% ¥1°829% 00°000'2$ 00°0$ 00°000'2$ 8|0 umo - salddng “jedo eoo 00000°02195°000000 LY L¥°L0'SO0L
%lESS  LL'E8LS 00'0% 1288 62°c£9% 62°€E9% 00°LLY'LS 00°0$ 00°ZLY'LS 810 umo - Buisienpy 00000°00+55°000000° LY LY LY0'S00L
%ELTL  9EPET'LS _oooL¥'es CINACRES $9'250'5$ $9'250's$ 00'269'6% 00°0% 00°269'6$ MBID UMO - S10BJUOD JBYIO 00000'025€5°000000° 2Ly LY0'SO0L
%Ze9s OV LS6% 00°0$ 0y’ 256$ 09'2yL$ 09'eyL$ 00°002'L$ 00°0$ 00°00L'L$ umoy - Bujuresy _mco_dsgumvmw_w 00000'002€5°000000 Ly Ly L¥0'S00L
%00~ (2L€s$) 82CLY'YSS 91'65€'vS$ y8'eee'Les v8'cee'18s 00'265'SEL$ 00°0$ 00'265'SELS 8]0 UMo| - |loiked JejnBay 00000'01945°000000° LY Ly’ L¥0°'SO0L
way % |egiebpng  edueIqWNOUT aouejeg adlA jusun) 19bpng 19 sjuswysnlpy  38bpng uonduasaqg JaquinN junoooy

9202-G20C :lea, |edsid

asuadx3 Asejes yym Arewwing 3499 umo |

uojjog JO UMO|



TOWN OF BOLTON
BOARD OF SELECTMEN MEETING
Tuesday, January 13, 2026, at 6:00 p.m.
Town Hall & Zoom Meeting
MEETING MINUTES

ROSTER IN-PERSON Z00M ABSENT
FIRST SELECTMAN: Rodney Fournier X
SELECTMEN: Bryce Aaronson X
Mather Clarke X
David Cowles X
Robert DePietro X
Gwen Marrion X
Tim Sadler X
STAFF: | James Rupert, Town Administrator
Andrea Vassallo, Recording Secretary

Members of the Public:

1.0 Call to Order:
Selectman Rodney Fournier called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.

2.0 Consider and Act on Polar Plunge:

*Selectwoman Gwen Marrion and Selectman Mather Clarke recuse themselves from the vote. *
Approval of the application was delayed at the January 06, 2026, BOS meeting due to a missing signature of
a current director, which has now been provided. Consideration by the BOS for the approval of the Polar

Plunge event scheduled for March 2026.

Selectman T. Sadler MOVED to APPROVE the Polar Plunge Event to be held at Indian Notch Park, March

2026.

Selectman B. Aaronson SECONDED; MOTION CARRIED; 4:0:2
Yea Fournier, Aaronson, Cowles, Sadler
Nay 0
Recusal | Clarke, Marrion

Bolton Board of Selectman Meeting Minutes 01/13/2026 Page 1of4



3.0 Consider and Act on A/P:

Selectman T. Sadler MOVED to APPROVE the A/P in the amount of $184,552.19 which excludes PO #26804
in the amount of $613.26 for the Town Garage Generator Maintenance which is a duplicate line item.

Selectman D. Cowles SECONDED;

Discussions:

B. Aaronson: Page 4, Maintenance of Town Garage Generator — Raised the concern that it appeared that
Purchase Order (PO) #26804 for the maintenance of the Town Garage Generator was a duplicate line item
from the last A/P report. J. Rupert, Town Administrator, confirmed that it was. The A/P report presented to
the BOS totaled $185,165.45 and should not include this duplicate line item. Consensus by the BOS to
adjust the total approved amount in the final motion.

M. Clarke: Page 12, Rock Salt Purchases — Questioned the specific charges, including multiple rock salt
deliveries. J. Rupert confirmed that the total costs presented, $19K and $3,500 for sand, are based on
separate deliveries. M. Clarke estimated that each delivery was approximately $2K per delivery, which J.
Rupert confirmed as correct. G. Marrion asked if the Town was still within the budgeted allotment for this
fiscal year. J. Rupert confirmed the Town is within the annual budget.

G. Marrion: Page 16, STV Consulting Services — Questioned the $4,100 line item and if there were
certain milestones that were being achieved. J. Rupert confirmed there are benchmarks and milestones
being tracked and he has reached out to STV and is waiting for an update from the consulting firm.

G. Marrion: Page 19, Mechanical/Energy Services — Inquired if the $13K cost associated with USA
Mechanical Services, for the replacement of control valves, was budgeted for the fiscal year. J. Rupert
stated that the payment was covered by capital budget and not part of the original Phase 2 quote.

D. Cowles: Page 2, Library Copier Replacement — Inquired if the $5,728.00 cost to replace the library copier
went over the approved budget. J. Rupert stated the cost of the replacement copier was anticipated and
budgeted. He further stated that a cost overrun occurred associated with the amount of copies that were
made during the year — not the replacement equipment.

M. Clarke: Page 20 & 21, Uniform Costs — Questioned why the town is paying for two different uniform
vendors and can these costs be consolidated and/or put out to a cost competitive bid. J. Rupert stated that
the two different vendors service two different town departments. Whereas the Building and Grounds
Department purchases their uniforms directly from one vendor and launders their own uniforms. The
Highway Department rents and launders their uniforms with the second vendor. J. Rupert stated that he
can investigate alternative vendors and solicit a competitive bid.

MOTION CARRIED; 6:0:0

Yea Fournier, Aaronson, Clarke, Cowles, Marrion, Sadler
Nay 0
Abstain | 0

Bolton Board of Selectman Meeting Minutes 01/13/2026 Page 20f4



4.0 Consider and Act on Budget Transfers: None.

5.0 Approval of Minutes:
a. December 30, 2025 — A/P Minutes
B. Aaronson MOTIONS to AMEND Agenda ltem 5.a to include the Recreational Grant
Discussion meeting minutes along with the BOS A/P meeting minutes for December 30,

2025.

Selectman M. Clarke SECONDED; MOTION CARRIED; 6:0:0
Yea Fournier, Aaronson, Clarke, Cowles, Marrion, Sadler
Nay 0
Abstain | 0

M. Clarke MOTIONS to APPROVE December 30, 2025, BOS A/P & Recreational Grant Discussion
meeting minutes as presented. Selectman T. Salder SECONDED;

Discussion:
e Page 3 of 7 - Typo acknowledged to correct the spelling of ‘adjourn’

MOTION CARRIED; 6:0:0

Yea Fournier, Aaronson, Clarke, Cowles, Marrion, Sadler
Nay 0
Abstain | 0

b. January 06, 2026 — Regular Meeting

Selectwoman G. Marrion MOVED to APPROVE the January 06, 2026, BOS Regular meeting minutes.
Selectman T. Salder SECONDED;

Discussion:
e Page 4 of 7, Agenda Iten 8.0: Heritage Farm Lease Agreement - Typo acknowledged to

correct the date to December 31.

MOTION CARRIED; 6:0:0

Yea Fournier, Aaronson, Clarke, Cowles, Marrion, Sadler
Nay 0
Abstain | O

Bolton Board of Selectman Meeting Minutes 01/13/2026 Page 30f4



6.0 Adjourn:

M. Clarke MOVED to ADJOURN the meeting at 6:21 PM.
Selectman B. Aaronson SECONDED; MOTION CARRIED; 6:0:0

Yea Fournier, Aaronson, Clarke, Cowles, Marrion, Sadler
Nay 0
Abstain | O

Respectfully submitted by Andrea Vassallo, Recording Clerk
Andnea Yassalle

Please see minutes of subsequent meetings for corrections to these minutes and any corrections hereto.
2 4

9
Originals Printed on 100% Recycled Paper — Earth Day and Every Day aE

Bolton Board of Selectman Meeting Minutes 01/13/2026 Page4of4



TOWN OF BOLTON
BOARD OF SELECTMEN MEETING &
BUDGET WORKSHOP #1
Wednesday, January 21, 2026, at 6:00 p.m.
Town Hall & Zoom Meeting
MEETING MINUTES

ROSTER IN-PERSON Z00M ABSENT
FIRST SELECTMAN: Rodney Fournier X
SELECTMEN: Bryce Aaronson X
Mather Clarke X
David Cowles X
Robert DePietro X
Gwen Marrion X
Tim Sadler X

STAFF: | James Rupert, Town Administrator

William Call, Fire Marshal

John Butrymovich, Supervisor, Buildings & Grounds
Alexander J. “AJ” Golden, Supervisor, Highway Department
Andrea Vassallo, Recording Secretary

Call to Order:
First Selectman Rodney Fournier called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.

1.0 Fire Marshal:
Town Staff Representative: William Call, Bolton Fire Marshal.

Board of Selectman (BOS) & Fire Marshal Budget Review & Discussion Summary
There was an increase in building fires this year, leading to higher operational costs. The fire at the
commercial business, Dean Cabinetry, required extensive investigation and collaboration with the State

Fire Marshal’s office.

Budget Review Discussion Topic Areas:
e Equipment
e Supplies
e Fire Department Budget
e Fire Incident Costs & Responses
e Fire Response Types
e State Fire Marshal Support
e Compliance & Inspection Achievements
e Community Programs

Bolton Board of Selectman Budget Workshop #1
Meeting Minutes

01/21/2026 Page 1of6



Department Line Item Review & BOS/Council Questions
At the request of the BOS W. Call addressed the following questions about specific line items within the
budget for the Fire Department:

e The difference between fire equipment and supplies.

o Fire equipment is used for purchasing tools and testing equipment, whereas
o Fire supplies are more categorically defined as prevention materials.

e State Fire Marshal support services when provided are often at no cost, such as advanced tools and
canine arson detection.

e Typically, more investigation time accrues cost expenditures.

e There are different costs associated with different call response types such as commercial vs.
residential. W. Call gave examples of different house fire types such as occupied vs. unoccupied
single-family homes.

e Commercial Fires (Dean Cabinetry Fire): Required more investigation and immediate notification
to the State Fire Marshal due to the scale and potential loss.

o Bolton hired an external electrician for a safety review ($190 cost). Funds were
appropriated and were approved by the BOS.

o Bolton did not incur charges from other fire departments for their response support
services.

o The Fire Department incurred expenses for warming center expenses which are typical of
long-duration incidents, although they rarely occur.

o No cost food donations were received.

e Residential Fires: Varied in complexity; some require external agency involvement.

Compliance & Inspection Achievements:
e The department is 100% compliant with statutory inspection obligations.
e Inspections vary by property type (businesses: every 3 years; residences, alcohol-serving, and
gathering places: annually).
e W. Call acknowledged support from the BOS for adequate funding.

Community Programs:
e Senior Lock Box: 26+ lock boxes installed throughout Bolton for emergency access, especially
benefiting seniors in single-family homes.
e School Education & Inspections: Annual, unannounced school inspections and fire education
programs.

Fire Prevention Poster Contest:
e Fourth and fifth graders create posters, juried by seniors at the center, fostering
intergenerational involvement and town pride.

Bolton Board of Selectman Budget Workshop #1
Meeting Minutes
01/21/2026 Page 20f6



2.0 Town Building Operations:
Town Staff Representative: John Butrymovich, Supervisor, Bolton Buildings & Grounds Department

Board of Selectman (BOS) & Building & Grounds Department Budget Review & Discussion Summary
J. Butrymovich stated the proposed budget for FY 26 is historically low, however, will incur a minor
increase. Highlights included successful maintenance projects, and regulatory compliance. Retirement
announcement of Building & Grounds Supervisor. The current staffing structure is that of:

e Six (6) core staff employees (4 maintainers, 1 custodian, 1 supervisor)
e One (1) part-time cemetery staff employee
e Four (4) seasonal lake employees

Budget Review Discussion Topic Areas:
e Budget Adjustments
e Unexpected Expenses
e Staffing

At the request of the BOS J. Butrymovich addressed the following questions about specific line items within
the budget for the Building & Grounds Department:

Budget Adjustments:

® Increase

o Payroll - Increase due to negotiated raises and moving longevity pay into regular payroll. FY 25

underspending was due to staff shortages.
Maintenance service repairs — Contractors’ costs.
Communications — Slight increase due to the purchasing of cell phones and data plans.
Electricity — Currently pay nine (9) cents per kWh. Adjusting to new Supply rates and taxes.
Uniforms — Increase to provide additional staff clothing.

O O O O

e Decrease
o No annual purchase of beach sand - reallocation of $3K.

o Heating fuel due to lower natural gas prices

e Maintain

o Training Funds and Professional Development Dues
Medical expenses — lifeguard and medical supplies
Equipment repair — small appliance and small motor.
Compliance costs associated maintaining statutory obligations.
Tree trimming operations costs.

O O 0O O

Bolton Board of Selectman Budget Workshop #1
Meeting Minutes

01/21/2026 Page 30f6



Selectman T. Sadler asked if there was any specific reason for an increase in repairs and maintenance.
Supervisor, J. Butrymovich stated the proposed FY 26 budget is at a historical low.

Selectman D. Cowles inquired if actuals budget cost are lower than projected, can money be shifted around
to other budgeted line items. J. Butrymovich stated he is hesitant to shift money. The actual budget is
conservatively estimated.

Selectman B. Aaronson stated there was a $22K difference for maintenance and repairs from FY 25 to FY 26
and inquired for what purpose. J. Butrymovich unexpected repairs expenses such as (central air, boiler, fire
dept. door). Monies were reallocated from payroll to pay for the differential costs.

Upcoming Leadership Change:

John Butrymovich, Supervisor, plans to retire on February 5, 2027, prompting discussions about
restructuring the department. James Rupert, Town Administrators explained the historical context of the
hiring process and potential finance impacts. He further encouraged the BOS to strongly consider looking at

this historical information.

Consideration given to replacing the Supervisor role with a new established position, Director of
Buildings and Grounds, of a similar job capacity as a Public Works Director with specific experiential and
project management nuances. Consideration is further given to a series of new internal positions
established across a variety of departments. Intention for the director’s position to assist the First
Selectman’s office to oversee ongoing projects and grant administration. J. Rupert stated that additional
future analysis and presentations are pending before the end of the FY 26 budget cycle review (over the

next several weeks).

Selectman T. Sadler asked J. Rupert if an overall net budget increase would occur by establishing the
position of Director. J. Rupert replied there would be a slight net increase, but he would work with J.
Butrymovich on identifying potential financial impacts and conduct a salary survey.

Seasonal Staffing:
Potentially looking for another seasonal summer position and are valued. The FY 26 the budget should not

be impacted. Student employment encouraged.

3.0 Highway:
Town Staff Representative: Alexander J. “A)” Golden, Supervisor, Highway Department

Board of Selectman (BOS) & Highway Department Budget Review & Discussion Summary
The conversation highlights discrepancies in payroll expenditures compared to budget requests and the

reasons behind them. The budget for road maintenance and repairs is discussed, emphasizing the need
for careful planning and monitoring of expenditures. The budget for street sweeping is supported by
Connecticut’s “Nickle-Per-Nip” program, which is crucial for maintaining road cleanliness. The discussion
revolves around the potential purchase of equipment for the highway department and its associated
costs. Tree trimming services have been effectively managed, with a focus on maintaining town

property.

Bolton Board of Selectman Budget Workshop #1
Meeting Minutes

01/21/2026 Page 40f6



Budget Review Discussion Topic Areas:
e Payroll & Staffing
e Tree Trimming
e Street Sweeping
e Road Repairs
e Road Maintenance Planning

At the request of the BOS Alexander J. “AJ” Golden addressed the following questions about specific line
items within the budget for the Highway Department:

Budget Adjustments
e Increase
o Minor payroll increase due to one (1) employee returning to FTE status, and longevity
payments shifting from 90% pay to 100% pay.
o Highway maintainers received a 3% increase.
o Road repairs (minor increase)

e Decrease
o Elimination of seasonal employees as there is no current need for summer help; previous
funds have been reallocated.
o Treetrimming

e Maintain

o Overtime rates

o Street sweeping
Payroll
Selectman B. Aaronson asked what reason was for the $70K increase in payroll. A. Golden replied that
there was one less FTE (full time employee) in FY 25 for half of the year. J. Rupert stated that he advised A.
Golden to work with the Bolton Finance Department to confirm pay period timeframes and document the
changes in payroll. He further stated that the Highway Department payroll increased by 4% but the overall
budget went down $2K and that benefits such as fringe costs, health insurance, and retirement benefits are

covered by two separate contracts.

Road Repairs
The current budget request for road repairs is $250,000, which is lower than previous expenditures of

$389K. Minor budget increase for materials and trucking costs, however $100K was given back last year.
Discussion ensued around the reliance on Town Aid Road funds from the state of Connecticut ($100K)
and that cost of road repairs is consistently going up and that the state funds do not cover the entire
repair costs which is approximately $500K. J. Rupert stated that the state funds are required to be
exclusively used on town roads and shall not be used for non-town road repairs such as the Town Hall

parking lot repaving project.

Selectman M. Clarke asked what the protocol is prioritizing road maintenance and repairs. A. Golden stated
that there is a town road maintenance schedule and roads are categorized by numerous variables including

Bolton Board of Selectman Budget Workshop #1
Meeting Minutes

01/21/2026 Page 50f6



but not limited to usage, construction quality, catch basin and curb conditions, roadway base material
deterioration rates, and full or partial reclamation.

A. Golden further stated that the average cost to mill and overlay an existing town road with no existing
catch basins is approximately $260K/mile. Replacement costs for a catch basin are approximately
S600/basin.

Several Selectman stated that prioritization, efficiency, and transparency is paramount. Discussion further
ensued among all parties discussing previous local town road repairs in FY 25 and upcoming repairs for FY
26. J. Rupert stated that Bolton does-a very good job at staying current with the scheduled maintenance
and repairs for local town roads, he further stressed that municipalities should avoid bonding funds for
road repairs to avoid long-term financial issues.

Tree Trimming & Roadside Maintenance:

Local tree trimming budget decreased due to the significant work by Eversource (electric utility company)
crews. The Town is mostly caught up on hazardous tree removals on town property, citing dead Ash trees,
and has been effectively managed.

Street Sweeping:

Discussion among the Selectman, A. Golden and J. Rupert ensued regarding the costs associated with town
administered verse contracted street sweeping services as well as the budget for street sweeping is
supported by Connecticut’s “Nickle-Per-Nip” program. A. Golden presented to the BOS the cost comparison
of renting a hopper broom attachment verse owning the equipment outright. Further cost analysis is to be
prepared by A. Golden and presented to the BOS and Administration at a later.

15.0 Adjourn:

B. Aaronson MOVED to ADJOURN the meeting at 7:15 PM. T. Sadler SECONDED.
MOTION CARRIED 7:0:0.

Respectfully submitted by Andrea Vassallo, Recording Clerk
Andnea Yassallo

Please see minutes of subsequent meetings for corrections to these minutes and any corrections hereto.
Y

9
Originals Printed on 100% Recycled Paper — Earth Day and Every Day ay

Bolton Board of Selectman Budget Workshop #1
Meeting Minutes

01/21/2026 Page 60f 6



A

TO: James Rupert, Town Administrator
FROM: Patrice Carson, Consulting Director of Community Development
SUBJECT: Land Use Activity: October-December, 2025

Zoning Regulations Review: Working with PZC to try and streamline Zoning Regulations
for users who want to do business in Bolton. Identifying obstacles and issues that have
presented during practice and review — ongoing.

Connecticut’s Countryside Project: Continuing to work with/assist town Businesses with
getting on the website and using it for free “advertising” for their businesses and events. —
ongoing.

Housing Site Analysis Solicitation for CRCOG Regional Housing Strategy: Application
that was submitted for Cider Mill to be considered as a representation of areas for housing
with little to no utilities was awarded. Work will begin in September. Staff met with CRCOG
Representative & Goman & York Representatives to kick off Housing Strategy Study for
Cider Mill Property — ongoing.

Meetings or Calls about Property:

137/122 West Street for appraisal/subdivision/sale

Met with property owner regarding lot line reconfiguration process

1230-1225 - questions about possible allowable uses (2 meetings)

25 West Street for development options with appraiser.

25 West Street for engineer and design of proposed development

1 Notch Road —work left to be done for Special Permit/tree clearing

87 Bolton Center Road — accessory building

25 South Road - possible subdivision _ _

Cider Mill Property — status call with owner regarding possible development

366 Boston Turnpike (Drive-In property) — Staff met with Developer to continue discussion
re: development plans

126 Hebron Road - possible development of property — 3 different interested parties
Answered questions about Bolton’s Affordable Housing Plan

217 Hebron Road - development of property

10-acre properties that might be available for a manufacturing business

80 Brandy Street — reviewed/signed off on permit for new home

1270 Boston Turnpike — reviewed/signed off on permit for kennel replacement

Other:

Attended Sustainability & Resiliency Week Webinar - Update From Senator Murphy's Office
Attended CCAPA Meeting

Attended 2-day SNEAPA Conference

Attended CT DEEP's Partnerships in Parks Initiative: A Path to Expand Economic
Development & Tourism and Support Local Businesses and Healthy Communities webinar

Land Use Activity: October-December, 2025 Page 1|2



Nominated Robert Morra for Joel Cogen Lifetime Achievement Award

Sent out Welcome Letter/Information to newly elected PZCers

Attended CCM Annual Conference

Quarterly Staff meeting (2 hrs)

Prepared DRAFT/submitted APPROVED schedule of 2026 PZC Regular Meeting Dates.
Attended CRCOG Priority Pathways Advisory Committee Meeting. (1% hrs)
Attended CRCOG Priority Pathways Committee Public Hearing. (1 hr)
Attended CRCOG Technical Advisory Housing Committee Meeting. (1 hr)
Attended town staff meeting (2 hrs)

Prepared draft 2026-27 PZC budget/Submitted approved 2026-27 PZC budget
Prepped for/attended/follow up for 3 PZC Meetings

Central Regional Tourism District Annual Board Meeting: Attended the Quarterly
Meeting and presented an update on Connecticut’s Countryside website and business
activities in Bolton.

Training:

e Completed cyber training (KnowBe4)

e Third Places as Social Economic Infrastructure (2V2 hrs)

e let’s Talk Housing! Public meeting — part of CRCOG Regional Housing Strategy (2 hrs)
e CT Trail Finder: ATool for Trail Users and Managers (1hr)

e Attended 2 CTCMA Quarterly Meeting (1'2 hrs)

e Attended 2-day Connecticut Affordable Housing Conference

e AdvanceCT Monthly Partners Meetings (1% hrs)

Serve on CRCOG Priority Pathways Advisory Committee: met to review data collected
from surveys and events — ongoing.

Serve on CRCOG Regional Housing Strategy Steering Committee: as a representative of
small towns with limited utilities for housing development — ongoing.

Serve on CRCOG Cost Review Subcommittee: representing the town of Bolton for
monthly meetings and sometimes chair the meeting — ongoing. (Y2 hr)

Serve on CRCOG Transportation Committee: representing the town of Bolton for monthly
meetings and sometimes chair the meeting — ongoing. (1% hrs)

Serve on CRCOG Bike/Ped Committee: representing the town of Bolton for quarterly
meetings — attended and ongoing. (2 hrs)

Serve on CRCOG Brownfield Steering Committee: representing the town of Bolton for
guarterly meetings — attended and ongoing. (1 hr)

Land Use Activity: October-December, 2025 Page 2|2



TO: James Rupert, Town Administrator
FROM: Patrice Carson, Consulting Director of Community Development
SUBJECT: Land Use Activity: January-June, 2025

Subdivision Regulation Review for Codification: Received comments back from General
Code. Reviewed with PZC to incorporate General Code changes. Public Hearing held,
codification passed and adopted. New Subdivision Regulations sent to/filed with/posted
with appropriate parties.

Zoning Regulations Review: Working with PZC to try and streamline Zoning Regulations
for users who want to do business in Bolton. Identifying obstacles and issues that have
presented during practice and review — ongoing.

Hop River Trail Connection: Worked with 271 Hop River Road gas station, town Wetlands
Agent, and State to get trail connection from the new gas station to the Hop River Trail. Trail
is complete and connected. Waiting for signage to be posted.

Connecticut’s Countryside Project: Continuing to work with/assist town Businesses with
getting on the website and using it for free “advertising” for their businesses and events.
Working on putting together a Fall Summit for Businesses on Al and how to use itin
business — ongoing.

Bolton Grown: Revising Bolton Grown pamphlet for active farms in Bolton — ongoing.

Housing Site Analysis Solicitation for CRCOG Regional Housing Strategy: Compiled
information for two sites in Bolton and submitted applications to be considered as a
representation of areas for housing with little to no utilities. This is a competitive process
which will be awarded during the summer - ongoing.

Meetings or Calls about Property:

271 Hop River Road - Adding Dunkin Donuts — approved

1 Notch Road - change of owner

7 Loomis Road - change of Regulation regarding age requirements for tenants — approved
166 Turnpike Road — 7 new modular home replacements — approved

310 Hop River Road - questions about outdoor lot sales

17/15 Shady Lane - possible subdivision

1225 Boston Turnpike — possible development

Cider Mill Property — met with owner regarding possible development; applied for State Site
Selector advertisement

366 Boston Turnpike (Drive-In property)- possible development

60 South Road — met with appraiser

Clark Road - possible lot line reconfiguration

Met with an individual interested in possible cluster housing development

Land Use Activity: January-June, 2025 Page 1|3



Other:

Collected Data and Submitted for Town Profiles and Data Report as requested.
Compiled Aquifer Protection list and submitted to the state.

Interviewed possible UConn Interns

Applied for the Diana Donald Scholarship for intern but was not awarded.

Lot Line Reconfigurations:
Clark Road

Central Regional Tourism District Annual Board Meeting: Attended the Annual Meeting
and presented a brief explanation of Connecticut’s Countryside website and business
activities in Bolton.

Training:

e How Community Engagement Strengthens Small Cities and Towns (ICMA)

e 2025 APATrend Report for Planners: Shape the Future

e CRCOG Vision Zero Workshops

e CRCOG Planning and Development Forum: Regional Roundtable of Local Planners and
Economic Development Staff

e CRCOG Automated Traffic Enforcement Roundtable

e CTDOT Local Bridge Program & Connectivity Grant Programs Webinar

e AdvanceCT Monthly Partners Meetings

e ROUND TABLE DISCUSSION FOR MUNICIPAL PARTNERS: Draft of the State of
Connecticut 2025-2029 Consolidated Plan for Housing and Community Development

e CRCOG Crash Data Review #1-Safety Action Plan

e Rural Communities, Walkability and Quality of Life Webinar

e Safe Streets and Roads for All (SS4A) Grant Workshop

e Making Rural Roads Safe for All (FHWA Roadway Safety Webinar Series)

e |CMA Webinar Al and Public Employees

e |CMA Listening Session

e CRCOG Annual Meeting

e CTCMA Annual Meeting

Serve on CRCOG Priority Pathways Advisory Committee: pop up survey event planned in
town this summer - ongoing.

Serve on CRCOG Regional Housing Strategy Steering Committee: as a representative of
small towns with limited utilities for housing development — ongoing.

Serve on CRCOG Cost Review Subcommittee: representing the town of Bolton for
monthly meetings and sometimes chair the meeting — ongoing.

Land Use Activity: January-June, 2025 Page 2|3



Serve on CRCOG Cost Review Subcommittee: representing the town of Bolton for
monthly meetings and sometimes chair the meeting — ongoing.

Serve on CRCOG Bike/Ped Committee: representing the town of Bolton for quarterly
meetings — ongoing.

Serve on CRCOG Brownfield Steering Committee: representing the town of Bolton for
quarterly meetings — ongoing.

Serve on CRCOG Regional POCD Technical Advisory Committee: the CRCOG Plan of
Conservation and Development (POCD) was adopted.

Land Use Activity: January-June, 2025 Page 3|3



TO: James Rupert, Town Administrator
FROM: Patrice Carson, Consulting Director of Community Development
SUBJECT: Land Use Activity: July-September, 2025

Zoning Regulations Review: Working with PZC to try and streamline Zoning Regulations
for users who want to do business in Bolton. Identifying obstacles and issues that have
presented during practice and review — ongoing.

Connecticut’s Countryside Project: Continuing to work with/assist town Businesses with
getting on the website and using it for free “advertising” for their businesses and events.
Working on putting together a Fall Summit for Businesses on Al and how to use itin
business —ongoing. Prepped for/attended a CTs Countryside Staff Meeting and a CTs
Countryside Steering Committee meeting. (1% hrs)

Housing Site Analysis Solicitation for CRCOG Regional Housing Strategy: Application
that was submitted for Cider Mill to be considered as a representation of areas for housing
with little to no utilities was awarded. Work will begin in September - ongoing.

Meetings or Calls about Property:

271 Hop River Road — Adding Dunkin Donuts with Drive-thru — approved

Appraiser for property on Loomis Street and Lyman Road

Answered questions about trail access from 271 Hop River Road to Hop River Trail
1230-1225 - questions about foreclosure and possible allowable uses

366 Boston Turnpike — questions about storage units

89 French Road - possible subdivision

2812 Boston Turnpike — possible development

Cider Mill Property — met twice with owner and Attorney regarding possible development
34 Tunxis Trail - septic and well questions

74 Cider Mill Road - lot coverage questions

366 Boston Turnpike (Drive-In property)- Discussed development plans/scheduled meeting
Food Trucks in town

51 Loomis Road - permit for duplex

17 Howard Road - reviewed/approved permit PL-25-6 for waste storage tank

Hebron Road - subdivision questions

senior housing development questions

271 Hop River Road - spoke with/got information for the press re: new Dunkin’ opening

Other:

Met with Eric Anderson re: connectivity across Route 6 to Hop River Trail

Quarterly Staff meeting (2 hrs)

Prepared DRAFT schedule of 2026 PZC Regular Meeting Dates.

Attended meeting to discuss CT COGs, CCM and COST proposed alternative to Housing
Bill 5002 looking for CCAPA leadership feedback. (1% hrs)

Land Use Activity: July-September, 2025 Page 1|2



Attended with Town Staff CRCOG Regional Transportation Safety Plan Meeting #1. (1% hrs)
Annual review of regulations for compliance with 8-3j report to State of CT

Attended CRCOG Technical Advisory Housing Committee Meeting. (1 hr)
Reviewed/responded to a CRCOG survey regarding FEMA changing adoption requirements
for Hazard Mitigation Plans

Lot Line Reconfigurations:
Stony Road - lot line reconfiguration and addition
Englands on Boston Turnpike - lot line reconfiguration to combine property

Training:

e Completed cyber training (KnowBe4)

e |dentifying Housing Needs in Your Town with the Housing Data Profiles

e AdvanceCT Monthly Partners Meetings (1% hrs)

e Quarterly Planning & Development Forum - presentation about Connecticut’s new
Release-Based Cleanup regulations that will impact brownfield redevelopment (1 hr)

Serve on CRCOG Regional Housing Strategy Steering Committee: as a representative of
small towns with limited utilities for housing development - ongoing. (1% hrs)

Serve on CRCOG Bike/Ped Committee: representing the town of Bolton for quarterly
meetings — attended and ongoing. (2 hrs)

Serve on CRCOG Brownfield Steering Committee: representing the town of Bolton for
quarterly meetings — attended and ongoing. (1%2 hrs)

Land Use Activity: July-September, 2025 Page 2|2



HIGHLIGHTS FEBRUARY 2026 BOS MEETING
SUBMITTED BY: James Rupert

Participated in the CRCOG policy board meeting

Participated in CRCOG Executive Board Meeting

We are working on budget and budget preparation documents

Worked with the Finance Committee on the CAPA budget

STV has completed most of the site visits and will finish them this week. They

will then work on aligning programmatic needs with the available space. They

are also working on detailed enrollment projections.

> We rescheduled our kickoff meeting for the Fire Department strategic plan due
to weather but Chief Dixon has sent them requested data

»> The Selectman’s Office has completed mapping supervisors in the Tyler system
and we have training scheduled

»> We have added the budget detail to the budget worksheets

> We monitored the major snowstorm event and managed town operations from
our home locations

> We completed the public hearing with the Inland Wetlands Commission and
received approval for the community septic system project

» Held a very successful coffee and conversation at the Senior Center and have
planned the next one which will take place just before the regular Finance
Committee meeting

» Completed drafting and posting the bid specifications for the Memorial Field
playground improvements

» We have fielded many phone calls about mailboxes after the storm as well as
trash pickup calls

» We are working with Novus to assess hardware needs for the rest of this fiscal
year using the inventory document we created

» We worked with the resident troopers to ask that vehicles be removed from the

roadways before the snowstorm

The union contract for highway has been signed by all parties

We completed the quarterly report on trash and recycling

We have been working on posting for the soon to be open positions which

include the recreation director and mechanic

» We have posted the MS4 information regarding stormwater management

VVVVY

YV V

Respectfully Submitted,

James Rupert





